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The Elias Conwell House is located in Napoleon, Indiana, at the corner of Wilson
Street and the 01d Michigan Road. Built about 1822, the structure is a detached
building of brick construction; the walls are laid in common bond. The two story
structure has a full stone basement. The House has an "L" shape with the main elevation
on the Tong leg of the "L". The roof consists of a hipped roof joined with a gable
roof over the short leg of the "L". The close eaves are decorated with the brick
dentils. There are three chimneys.

The Conwell House is an example of the Federal style of architecture. A principal
feature of this style is the main entrance. The paneled door is flanked by side
1ights and fluted pilasters and capped by a fan light. The main facade has seven
bays on the first and second stories. The ground floor bays have an unusual arrange-
ment of entrances on each end with the main entrance in the bay just left of the center
window. The windows in the front and side elevations have two over two lights. 'The
short leg of the "L" has four bays on the second story and an entrance flanked by
windows on the first level. Originally, there was another window on the ground level;
however, this opening was removed when this section of the building was rebricked late
in the Nineteenth Century. The windows on this west side have flat radiating voussoirs
while the windows in the main elevation have wooden lintels. The windows in the rear
have nine 1ights over six lights. The rear elevation has five windows and two doorways
on the first story, and six windows on the second story.

There have been only two major alterations to the exterior. One was the removal of
a window when asection of the west wall was rebricked. The other change was the con-
version of one of the rear windows to a door in the late 1800's.

On the inside, a wide hall bisects the house. The entrance hall has a staircase
with a cherry handrail and spindles. Fireplaces have classical and Adam-styled
mantelpieces. Cherry, poplar and ash woods were used throughout. the house.

A low stone wall extends across the south and west sides of the house.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Conwell House is significant as an intact example of Federal style architecture
and as the home of one of Napoleon's earliest and most outstanding citizens. It is char-
acterized by a remarkable purity of proportion and detail and has remained basically un-
changed throughout the years. The main entrance has elements of the Federal style, but the
arrangement, of windows, side entrances. and the off-center.main.entrance is unusual.,

The house was built by Elias. Conwell,. who.arrived in Aurora, Indiana,. in 1819 and .
quickly became prominent in its public affairs. Born in Delaware in 1785, Conwell upon
his arrive in Indiana established the first mercantile store in Aurora. He had a daughter
who was married to James W. Gaff, a leading Ohio Valley industrialist and a brother of
Thomas Gaff, who built Hillforest Mansion in Aurora (listed on the National Register).

Conwell moved to Ripley County and on September 24, 1821, bought 160 acres north of
Wilson Street in Napoleon. He promptly built a brick kiln, brewery, and tanyard. He
opened and operated a popular store at Wilson and Versailles Streets. These ventures were
immediate successes, and Conwell used his new wealth to buy four town lots so he could builc¢
(about 1822) a large brick house at the corner of Wilson and Madison Streets. Conwell and
his wife, Esther, a daughter of Charles Tatem of Cincinnati, made their house a center of
refined hospitality, enteértaining politicians and other notables.

Napoleon in the 1820's was the major point of entry for pioneers settling in Central
Indiana. The town became a key stop on the Cincinnati to Indianapolis stage route, and
several inns were opened to serve travelers. Conwell operated one of these inns.

Conwell lived in his large brick house until his death in 1862. 1In 1864 the property
was sold to Henry D. Kanning. After Kanning's death in 1900, his heirs sold the property
in 1905 to Grant Roberts. The property changed hands a number of times until it was
acquired by the Gardners in 1976.
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History of Dearborn and Ohio Counties, Indiana. Chicago: F. E. Weakley and
Company, 1885.

Napoleon Sesquicentennial Book. Aurora, Indiana: Moreton Printing, 1970.

Last Will and Testament of Elias Conwell dated November 23, 1862

Abstract to Property

Interviews on May 14, 1977: Esther W. Roache
415 Manchester Street
Aurora, Indiana 47001

Phyllis Miller
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Indiana 47034
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Street, which is also the South line of said Section, a distance of 304.05 feet to an
iron pin, which is the true point of beginning: Thence North 7° 43' 30" East 92.60 feet
to an iron pin; thence North 75© 49' 30" West 128.00 feet to an iron pin in the East
Right of Way line of U.S. 421; thence South 0° 47' West along said Right of Way 122.00
feet to an iron pin in the North line of Wilson Street; thence East along said line
112.95 feet to the point of beginning and containing 0.295 acre, more or less, but
subject to all legal highways and easements of record.



